

# **MINUTES**

of the

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

held on

WEDNESDAY 28 MARCH 2018

in the

YEA COUNCIL CHAMBER

commencing at

6.02 pm

# INDEX

1.	PLEDGE AND RECONCILIATION STATEMENT	Z
2.	APOLOGIES AND REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE	
3.	COMMUNITY RECOGNITION	
4.	DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST OR CONFLICT OF INTEREST	
5.	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES	
6.	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION TIME	
6.1 6.2 6.3	Questions of Council	5
7.	OUR PLACE	6
7.1	Proposed Dwelling	6
8.	OUR PEOPLE	.13
8.1	Community Grants Program – October 2017 to February 2018	13
9.	OUR PROSPERITY	
10	OUR PROMISE	.15
	Proposed Road Discontinuance of Part of Smith Street, Yea – Goulburn Valley Water, Water Treatment Plant	16 17 19
11.	NOTICES OF MOTIONS	.19
12.	MATTERS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETING	
13.	URGENT BUSINESS	.20
14.	COUNCILLOR AND PORTFOLIO REPORTS	.20
14.2 14.3	Cr Margaret Rae - Land Use Planning Portfolio	21 22
14.5 14.6	Cr Rebecca Bowles - Natural Environment and Climate Change Portfolio	23 24
15.	ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCILLORS	.26
16.	SEALING REGISTER	.29
17	CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS	20

# 1. PLEDGE AND RECONCILIATION STATEMENT

The meeting was opened with all Councillors declaring the following Pledge:

"We as Councillors democratically elected to represent our community as the Murrindindi Shire Council, are committed to working together in the best interests of the people who live in our municipality, who conduct business here and those who visit."

# 2. APOLOGIES AND REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE

There were no apologies tendered.

Cr Eric Lording requested a leave of absence from 14 April to 28 April 2018.

#### Present:

Crs C Bisset (Chair), S McAulay, R Bowles, J Ashe, L Dunscombe, E Lording, M Rae

#### In attendance:

Interim Chief Executive Officer: Craig Lloyd

General Manager Corporate and Community Services: Michael Chesworth General Manager Infrastructure and Development Services: Stuart McConnell

Manager Business Services: Andrew Bond

Manager Communications Library & Customer Services: Jacqui Rabel

Manager Infrastructure Assets: John Canny Manager Infrastructure Operations: Mark Leitinger Manager Community Services: Naomi McNamara Coordinator Statutory Planning: Karen Girvan

Governance Officer: Hana Duldig

## **RESOLUTION:**

Cr S McAulay / Cr M Rae That Standing Orders be suspended.

**CARRIED** 

The meeting was suspended at 6.04 pm.

## 3. COMMUNITY RECOGNITION

Council suspended standing orders to thank and acknowledge community achievements including:

#### Holmesglen Eildon for receipt of an Australian Tourism Award

Cr Ashe delivered the following remarks in congratulating Holmesglen Eildon:

"I'm very pleased to welcome to tonight's Council meeting – Enzo Spangher the Executive Director Assets and Infrastructure at Holmesglen and Rozanne Lawton the General Manager at Holmesglen at Eildon.

It's our pleasure to recognise Holmesglen at Eildon, who won silver at the 2017 Qantas Australian Tourism Awards in the category of 'Business Event Venues'.

For those who don't know Holmesglen at Eildon, it is a 660acre property with purpose built Business Event Venue catering for Conferences, Function and Events.

It truly reflects the beautiful natural surrounds with accommodation for 150, flexible function rooms, boardrooms and wide range of entertaining spaces.

A 'Low Miles' food philosophy means ingredients are sourced in house from their kitchen gardens, own farmed Angus beef, locally sourced fresh water salmon and trout, berries, olive oil, poultry and more.

Their sustainable ethos and involvement in the local community and tourism industry is a credit to this Business Event Venue that has grown immensely since it commenced operation.

The Australian Tourism Awards are the tourism industry's peak Awards, recognising and promoting excellence in tourism. These awards were first established by the Federal Government and have now been running for over 30 years.

To provide some insight into the calibre of entrants Holmesglen at Eildon were up against, Adelaide Hill Convention Centre in South Australia received gold in the 'Business Event Venues' category and the Rendezvous Hotel Perth received bronze.

To qualify as a finalist at Australian Tourism Awards entrants must first win gold in their respective categories at the Victorian Tourism Awards. This in itself is a fantastic accomplishment, with Holmesglen at Eildon receiving the gold award for 'Business Event Venues'. This is their 2<sup>nd</sup> gold in this category & fingers crossed for a 3<sup>rd</sup> next year – entering into the Hall of Fame

Rozanne and Assistant Manager, Corey Dewhurst attended the Award Ceremony in Perth on 23 February 2018 to receive their award.

I'd like to take this opportunity to thank Bruce McKenzie, the Holmesglen Board, Directors of 15 years ago for their vision & dedication in making a decision to make the investment in the Snobs Creek area.

A few years ago while working for Holmesglen at Eildon I calculated what a venue like thi brings to the local economy through direct employment, contractors, service providers, local suppliers & producers, sponsorship and support and we thank you for your support to our local economy.

You are an absolute inspiration, industry leaders & an Asset in our beautiful region.

Congratulations once again to Holmesglen at Eildon on this outstanding achievement."

## • School Captains at Yea High School in recognition of their appointment

Cr Bissett delivered the following remarks in congratulating the School Captains of Yea High School:

"I'm very pleased tonight to welcome Yea High School's Principal Bruce Skewes and the College's 2018 leaders. It's our pleasure to be able to recognise the 2018 School Captains Hannah Cooney and Max Westwood.

Congratulations to you both for navigating your way so successfully through to your senior year and for being recognised as leaders by your school community. At this point we should probably acknowledge your parents' and your families' contributions to your achievements too – I know that takes a lot of work, but it's certainly been well worth it!

Being recognised as a leader is a such an honour and privilege, but at the same time, it comes with responsibilities. Just think about the current Australian cricket team!

You have now become role models to those around you and within your community. Your actions, words and gestures can and will influence other. Dont be afraid or nervous of this. Accept these and use them to do good and lay the foundations of a legacy that you want to be known for. Make a positive difference to your school and its community.

We hope you all enjoy this year – we know it's a tough year – but we hope you can make the most of it and will look back on it as one of your best. We also want you to know as part of your community, we're incredibly proud of you and we're here to support you if, or when, you ever need it.

Congratulations to you all."

 Cherri Anderson for singing the national anthem at the Jayco Herald Sun Tour held in the Shire.

Cr Dunscombe delivered the following remarks in congratulating Cherri Anderson:

"It is my greatest pleasure to welcome to tonight's Council meeting Kinglake West teenager, Cherri Anderson. Cherri recently made her international stage debut, singing the national anthem at the Jayco Herald-Sun bike tour in Kinglake on 4 February. The coverage was broadcast live on SBS.

The opportunity to sing at the Jayco Herald-Sun Tour came about when Cherri's name was put forward to event organiser and she successfully auditioned for her role.

Most 14 year olds would find an experience like this daunting, but not Cherri who took it all in her stride. Backed by her singing mentor, Paul Ray who is also here tonight, organisers were so captivated with Cherri's performance that they asked her to sing additional songs on the day.

To say she impressed the audience on the day would be understatement. People throughout the Shire are talking about Cherri's spectacular voice and charismatic stage presence and are wanting to see more of this talented young singer.

Cherri is not new to the spotlight, having scored the main part at Whittlesea Secondary College's 'Legally Blonde' production when she was in year 7. Cherri has also attended various Ellimatta Youth events including Open Mic and Jam nights.

We Wish Cherri all the very best for what I am sure will be a very successful future.

Cherri will also be singing the national anthem for us tonight... so stay tuned."

# **RESOLUTION:**

Cr S McAulay / Cr M Rae That Standing Orders be resumed.

**CARRIED** 

The meeting was resumed at 6.15pm.

# 4. <u>DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST OR CONFLICT OF INTEREST</u>

Cr L Dunscombe declared an indirect Conflict of Interest under section 77A of the *Local Government Act 1989* due to a conflicting personal interest in the matters being considered in item 8.1 of the Agenda.

# 5. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

5.1 Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 28 February 2018.

#### Officer Recommendation

That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 28 February 2018 be confirmed.

## **RESOLUTION:**

Cr J Ashe / Cr S McAulay

That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 28 February 2018 be confirmed.

**CARRIED** 

The Chairperson declared Public Participation Time open and invited questions from the Gallery.

## 6. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION TIME

#### 6.1 QUESTIONS OF COUNCIL

Two questions were received from Mr Jack Russell of Yea and from the Yea & District Progress Association. Per section 109.3 of the *Governance Local Laws No. 2*, the questions were not read as the submitters were not present at the meeting. A separate response to the submitters will be provided as per section 110 of the *Governance Local Law No. 2*.

### 6.2 OPEN FORUM

Mr Neil Granter spoke against the Proposed Dwelling (item 7.1 on the Agenda).

### 6.3 PETITIONS

Nil

The Chairperson closed Public Participation Time.

# 7. OUR PLACE

#### 7.1 PROPOSED DWELLING

Attachment(s): Application Information (refer Attachment 7.1)

Objection notified separately

Land: 174 Allandale Road Strath Creek
Proposal: Construction and use of single dwelling
Applicant: I & S Gulic, 174 Allandale Road Pty Ltd

Zoning: Farming

Overlays: Bushfire Management Overlay (part)



#### **Purpose**

This report recommends that a notice of decision to grant a permit be issued for the construction and use of a dwelling at 174 Allandale Road, Strath Creek. A planning permit is required for the use and construction of a dwelling in the Farming Zone on a lot of less than 40 hectares (ha) in area.

## Officer Recommendation

That Council issue a notice of decision for the construction and use of a single dwelling at 174 Allandale Road Strath Creek, subject to the following conditions:

1. The layout of the site and the size and type of the proposed buildings and works, including the materials of construction, as shown on the endorsed plan shall not be altered or modified without the consent in writing of the Responsible Authority.

2. This permit shall expire if the development hereby permitted is not completed and the use commenced within two years of the date hereof, or any extension of such period the Responsible Authority may allow in writing. A request for an extension of time may be made before or within six months after the permit expiry date, where the use or development allowed by the permit has not yet commenced, or within 12 months after the permit expiry date, where the development allowed by the permit lawfully commenced before the permit expired.

- 3. Before the start of the use allowed, the area set aside for landscaping, as shown on the endorsed plan, must be planted to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority. This area must then be maintained to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority, and must not be used for any other purpose except with the prior written approval of the Responsible Authority.
- 4. Before the building is occupied all internal access roads must be upgraded, formed and drained to avoid erosion and to minimise disturbance to natural topography of the land to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.
- 5. The internal access road to the building shall be upgraded to a size and standard satisfactory to the Responsible Authority to provide all weather access for emergency service vehicles. The works must include the provision of suitable pavement material of at least 3.5 metres in width with 0.5 metre side clearances and 4 metre vertical clearance and designed to carry a vehicle weighing at least 15 tonnes.
- 6. Prior to commencing construction, a suitable prepared engineering plan detailing the proposed driveway, earthworks and drainage, including the erosion and sediment control measures must be submitted to the Responsible Authority and receive its endorsement.
- 7. All sewage and sullage waters shall be treated in accordance with the requirements of the Environment Protection Authority and the Council. All effluent shall be disposed of and contained within the curtilage of the land and shall not discharge directly or indirectly to an adjoining property, street or any water course, water storage or dam. Sufficient land shall be set aside and kept available for the purpose of effluent disposal.
- 8. Prior to the commencement of any works, including site works, the applicant shall obtain a septic tank permit from Council.
- 9. All stormwater and surface water discharging from the building and works must be conveyed to a point of discharge, approved by the Relevant Authority. No stormwater discharge from downpipes or overflow from storage tank and surface water shall be directed or caused to be directed in a concentrated form that will cause erosion and or adverse affects within the site or to adjoining land or properties.
- 10. The approved works must not cut off natural drainage to adjacent properties.
- 11. The dwelling must have a total minimum of 55,000 litres of water capacity of which 45,000 litres shall be for domestic use and 10,000 litres of static water supply being for firefighting purposes, the latter being in the lower portion of the tank, or separately. All outlets from the lower tank or separate firefighting tank shall be fitted with a 64 milometer 3 threads per inch, male fitting to suit a Country Fire Authority (CFA) coupling, and fire brigade vehicles must be able to get to within four metres of the coupling.

#### Notations:

1. This permit does not authorise the commencement of any building construction works. Before any such development may commence, the applicant must apply for and obtain appropriate building approval.

## **Background**

An application was received for a dwelling on the above property in the Farming Zone (FZ), which has a site area of approximately 20.57ha. A planning permit is required for the use and development of the land as the lot size is less than 40ha in area. The Bushfire Management Overlay does not cover the dwelling site and is not relevant to the planning assessment of this application.

During the advertising period, one submission was received. Following an onsite meeting with a Council officer, the owners, the owners' planning consultant and the submitters, an amended proposal was submitted and forwarded to the submitter who did not withdraw their objection. As this submission has not been withdrawn, Council must determine the outcome of the application.

## The Land and Surroundings

The land is approximately 20.57ha in size and is mostly clear. It contains two agricultural sheds and three dams. A seasonal water course runs from the centre of the lot in a north-westerly direction towards Allandale Road, which bounds the site to the north. The adjoining land is characterised by similarly sized cleared lots containing single dwellings and outbuildings.

The land is undulating to steep. The proposed dwelling will be located on an existing excavated area accessed by an existing track. The track and flat house site have existed since at least 2003.

There are existing dwellings on the abutting land to the west and east as well as the lot directly opposite and the submitters land to the east. The houses on both the abutting lot to the east and the submitters land to the east are approximately 235 metres from the proposed house site and on a similar elevation.

#### Discussion

The application is for a dwelling that would be developed in conjunction with the use of the property as a small-scale horse rescue operation. The justification for the use of a dwelling on this land is considered satisfactory as the proposed use requires agricultural land and there is a need for an owner to be onsite for management and oversight purposes.

The visibility of the house to neighbours and the potential for noise to carry is mainly due to the similar elevations of the nearest two dwellings. The dwelling immediately to the east is 15 metres higher that the proposed dwelling and the submitters dwelling is approximately 5 metres higher. A distance of 235 metres from the proposed site to the two nearest dwellings is considered an appropriate setback with noise unlikely to be an issue. Other houses in the immediate area are within 80 metres of each other and no noise complaints have been received.

The onsite meeting raised some solutions to the issue of visibility with the applicants lodging amended plans that show a 10 metre landscaping strip that will provide a screening buffer between the proposed building and the nearby dwellings to the east. The proposed planting will be indigenous trees and shrubs that grow to a height of 2 to 3 metres. This will ensure that the house is screened but will not unduly block the long view across the valley from neighbours.

The location of the proposed dwelling is on a ridge but not at the highest point on the property as the property rises another 100 metres behind the house site. The hill at the rear creates a backdrop to the dwelling and reduces any visible impact that might otherwise occur if the development was on a skyline. The land is not within a Significant Landscape Overlay however there is still a requirement to address design and siting issues within the FZ decision guidelines. In this instance the siting does not adversely impact in relation to visual amenity and the location is similar to other dwellings in the vicinity.

Referrals

# The application was not referred to other agencies given the nature of the proposal and given that

there were no specific triggers to require referral under the planning scheme.

# Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

The application has been assessed with reference to the following Our Place strategic objectives and strategies in the Murrindindi Shire Council Plan 2017-2021 – 'through good land use planning enhance the liveability, prosperity and rural character of our Shire'.

### **Relevant Legislation**

The application is being assessed in accordance with the requirements of the *Planning and Environment Act 1987 (Victoria)*.

# **Financial Implications and Risk**

There is no financial risk to Council in this report.

#### **Conflict of Interest**

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in relation to this report.

### **Community and Stakeholder Consultation**

Nearby and adjoining properties were notified of the application by mail. One submission was received that raised the following issues:

- no objection to a dwelling but would prefer a better location
- concerned that house site is on top of a ridgeline which would impact on submitters views
- house site 15 metres from property boundary will allow items to be stored behind house and in view of submitter
- being higher on the property will allow noise to carry through the valley.

#### **Planning Considerations**

### Legal/Policy Issues

## 11.10 Hume Regional Growth

Objective: to develop a more diverse regional economy while managing and enhancing key regional economic assets.

Strategies: facilitate rural tourism activities that support agricultural enterprises such as cellar door and farm gate sales and accommodation in appropriate locations.

#### 14.01 Agriculture

Objective: Tt protect productive farmland which is of strategic significance in the local or regional context.

## Strategies:

- ensure that the state's agricultural land base is protected from the unplanned loss of productive agricultural land due to permanent changes of use
- in considering a proposal to develop agricultural land, the following factors must be considered:
  - desirability and impacts of removing the land from primary production, given its agricultural productivity
  - impacts of the proposed subdivision on the continuation of primary

- o production on adjacent land, with particular regard to land values and to the viability of infrastructure for such production
- compatibility between the proposed or likely development and the existing uses of the surrounding land.

# Local Planning Policy Framework

# 21.03-2 Agriculture

#### Issues:

- agriculture has economic and strategic significance for the municipality and has potential for continued expansion
- the protection of agricultural land is necessary to support future growth of the agricultural sector and the diversification of agricultural activities
- potential for housing to lead to incremental loss of productive agricultural land
- potential for use of agricultural land for non-agricultural or rural-living purposes to conflict with established or future agricultural and horticultural land uses.

# Strategies:

- ensure that the use and development of rural land protects and enhances agricultural potential and the productive capacity of the land
- ensure that the use and development of rural land is compatible with surrounding agricultural activities
- ensure that agricultural land is not developed for primarily residential purposes
- discourage the development or conversion of land to uses incompatible with productive agriculture
- identify and protect high quality agricultural land, ensuring that it is protected from unplanned long term loss and is available for ongoing agricultural use
- ensure that small lot subdivisions or any excision of an existing dwelling protects and maintains the productive agricultural capacity of land and general area or supports the conservation of an identified heritage place to which the Heritage Overlay applies
- protect water catchments and areas of high landscape, biodiversity, conservation and heritage value.

# Zoning

# 35.07 Farming Zone

#### Purpose:

- to implement the State Planning Policy Framework and the Local Planning Policy Framework, including the Municipal Strategic Statement and local planning policies
- to provide for the use of land for agriculture
- to encourage the retention of productive agricultural land
- to ensure that non-agricultural uses, including dwellings, do not adversely affect the use of land for agriculture
- to encourage the retention of employment and population to support rural communities
- to encourage use and development of land based on comprehensive and sustainable land management practices and infrastructure provision.

#### **Decision Guidelines**

#### General issues:

- how the use or development relates to sustainable land management
- whether the site is suitable for the use or development and whether the proposal is compatible with adjoining and nearby land uses.

### Agricultural issues and the impacts from non-agricultural uses:

- whether the use or development will support and enhance agricultural production
- whether the use or development will permanently remove land from agricultural production
- the potential for the development to limit the operation and expansion of adjoining and nearby agricultural uses
- the capacity of the site to sustain the agricultural use.

# Dwelling issues:

- whether the dwelling will be adversely affected by agricultural activities on adjacent and nearby land due to dust, noise, odour, use of chemicals and farm machinery, traffic and hours of operation
- whether the dwelling will adversely affect the operation and expansion of adjoining and nearby agricultural uses
- the potential for the proposal to lead to concentration or proliferation of dwellings in the area and the impact of this use on the land for agriculture.

#### Design and siting issues:

- the need to locate buildings in one area to avoid any adverse impacts on surrounding agricultural uses and to minimise the loss of productive agricultural land
- the impact of the siting, design, height, bulk, colours and materials to be used, on the natural environment, major roads, vistas and water features and the measures to be undertaken to minimise any adverse impacts
- the impact on the character and appearance of the area or features of architectural, historic or scientific significance or of natural scenic beauty or importance.

A planning permit is required for a dwelling in the FZ on a lot of less than 40ha.

#### **Overlays**

44.06 Bushfire Management Overlay

As the overlay only affects a relatively small portion of the lot at the rear, and not the proposed house site, this overlay is not relevant.

#### **RESOLUTION:**

#### Cr M Rae / Cr S McAulay

That Council issue a notice of decision for the construction and use of a single dwelling at 174 Allandale Road Strath Creek, subject to the following conditions:

1. The layout of the site and the size and type of the proposed buildings and works, including the materials of construction, as shown on the endorsed plan shall not be altered or modified without the consent in writing of the Responsible Authority.

2. This permit shall expire if the development hereby permitted is not completed and the use commenced within two years of the date hereof, or any extension of such period the Responsible Authority may allow in writing. A request for an extension of time may be made before or within six months after the permit expiry date, where the use or development allowed by the permit has not yet commenced, or within 12 months after the permit expiry date, where the development allowed by the permit lawfully commenced before the permit expired.

- 3. Before the start of the use allowed, the area set aside for landscaping, as shown on the endorsed plan, must be planted to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority using primarily indigenous plants and shrubs that grow to a maximum height of 3 metres to create a screening buffer for properties to the east. This area must then be maintained to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority, and must not be used for any other purpose except with the prior written approval of the Responsible Authority.
- 4. Before the building is occupied all internal access roads must be upgraded, formed and drained to avoid erosion and to minimise disturbance to natural topography of the land to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.
- 5. The internal access road to the building shall be upgraded to a size and standard satisfactory to the Responsible Authority to provide all weather access for emergency service vehicles. The works must include the provision of suitable pavement material of at least 3.5 metres in width with 0.5 metre side clearances and 4 metre vertical clearance and designed to carry a vehicle weighing at least 15 tonnes.
- 6. Prior to commencing construction, a suitable prepared engineering plan detailing the proposed driveway, earthworks and drainage, including the erosion and sediment control measures must be submitted to the Responsible Authority and receive its endorsement.
- 7. All sewage and sullage waters shall be treated in accordance with the requirements of the Environment Protection Authority and the Council. All effluent shall be disposed of and contained within the curtilage of the land and shall not discharge directly or indirectly to an adjoining property, street or any water course, water storage or dam. Sufficient land shall be set aside and kept available for the purpose of effluent disposal.
- 8. Prior to the commencement of any works, including site works, the applicant shall obtain a septic tank permit from Council.
- 9. All stormwater and surface water discharging from the building and works must be conveyed to a point of discharge, approved by the Relevant Authority. No stormwater discharge from downpipes or overflow from storage tank and surface water shall be directed or caused to be directed in a concentrated form that will cause erosion and or adverse affects within the site or to adjoining land or properties.
- The approved works must not cut off natural drainage to adjacent properties.
- 11. The dwelling must have a total minimum of 55,000 litres of water capacity of which 45,000 litres shall be for domestic use and 10,000 litres of static water supply being for firefighting purposes, the latter being in the lower portion of the tank, or separately. All outlets from the lower tank or separate firefighting tank shall be fitted with a 64 milometer 3 threads per inch, male fitting to suit a Country Fire Authority (CFA) coupling, and fire brigade vehicles must be able to get to within four metres of the coupling.

## **Notations:**

This permit does not authorise the commencement of any building construction works. Before any such development may commence, the applicant must apply for and obtain appropriate building approval.

**CARRIED** 

# 8. OUR PEOPLE

Cr L Dunscombe left the Chamber at 6.34pm prior to consideration of item 8.1 of the Agenda.

#### 8.1 COMMUNITY GRANTS PROGRAM – OCTOBER 2017 TO FEBRUARY 2018

Attachment(s): Community Grant Program 2017-18 Round 2 October-February Summary

(refer Attachment 8.1)

### **Purpose**

This report informs Council of the recommendations made by the delegated Community Grants Assessment Panel (Panel) on applications received in the October 2017 to February 2018 round. The report also seeks Council endorsement of the recommendations.

#### Officer Recommendation

That Council endorses the recommendations of the Community Grants Assessment Panel outlined in the following table:

Application	Funding sought	Recommendation
Yea Bowling Club	\$1,500	That the application be supported with a grant of \$1,000.
Firefoxes Australia	\$5,000	That the application be supported with a grant of \$2,500 in addition to waiving the fees for hire of the Yea Shire Hall and Community buses.
Sacred Heart Yea	\$4,200	That the application be supported with a grant of \$2,500.
Yea Pottery Studio Inc.	\$3,500	Supported
Alexandra Primary School Arts Committee (APSAC)	\$4,800	Application held awaiting further information.

#### **Background**

The Community Grants Program (Program) provides the opportunity for community groups and organisations to seek funding to support a range of activities and initiatives. The Program is open to community groups, organisations and service clubs undertaking initiatives based in the Murrindindi Shire. Grant applicants can seek a maximum of \$5,000 funding for projects that meet Council's aims, as outlined in the Council Plan 2017-2021 and Health and Wellbeing Plan. Applicants are required to make a cash and/or in kind contribution to their project.

There are three grant rounds each financial year. The current round, round 2, was open from October 2017 to February 2018.

Applications for the current funding round were assessed by the Panel comprising of the Mayor, Deputy Mayor and the Chief Executive Officer. Applications for \$1,000 or less are assessed and approved by the Panel with a report to Council on its decision. Applications for \$1,001 or more are assessed by the Panel which makes a recommendation to Council.

#### **Discussion**

In total five applications were received from community organisations and schools for the October 2017 to February 2018 round. These applications are listed in *Attachment 8.1*.

The Panel recommended supporting all applications in part:

- 1. The Yea Bowling Club sought funding of \$1,500 to develop and run a new off season tournament to further promote the sport and the club and attract new membership and greater use of the community asset. The application sought assistance with prize money for tournament winners. The Panel recommended that the application be supported to the value of \$1,000 to support catering and services costs of running the event rather than prize money.
  - The Yea Bowling club will be asked to work with Council's Tourism and Events Coordinator to develop a promotion plan for the event. Council will be acknowledged through this promotion for their sponsorship of the event and Councillors will be invited to attend the Tournament presentation.
- 2. Firefoxes Australia sought funding of \$5,000 to run a Murrindindi Women's Forum in Yea to bring women across the Shire together and strengthen connections. The application sought support to cover the costs of facility and community bus hire in addition to supporting the costs of the event. The Panel recommended that the application be supported to the value of \$2,500 to support the costs of the event, additionally the panel recommended that the facility and community bus hire be waived (a value of \$962).
  - Firefoxes Australia will be asked to work with Council's Tourism and Events Coordinator to develop a promotion plan for the event. Council will be acknowledged through this promotion for their sponsorship of the event and relevant Councillors will be invited to attend the Forum.
- 3. Sacred Heart Primary School sought funding of \$4,200 to undertake training and strategic engagement planning to strengthen collaboration between the school, parents and the broader community. The application sought funding to support the delivery of community engagement training for teachers and parents. The Panel expressed that teacher professional development is a responsibility of the Catholic Education Office but were happy to support the parent education component of the application. The Panel recommended that the application be supported to the value of \$2,500.
- 4. The Yea Pottery Studio sought funding of \$3,500 to upgrade their equipment, enabling on site firing of works completed by community members attending the studio. The Panel recommended that the application be supported in full, contingent on the kiln being made available (at a suitable fee) to schools and other community groups.
- 5. The Alexandra Primary School, in conjunction with More Murals sought funding of \$4,800 to undertake workshops and an art/mural installation in Bakers Lane Alexandra, to celebrate and create awareness of the natural environment and endangered species. The Panel recommended that the application be held over to the next round of community grants pending further information and discussion regarding arrangements for the ongoing maintenance and renewal of the mural and to ensure the appropriate permissions were in place with relevant owners, tenants and other traders in Bakers Lane. The Panel indicated they were happy to consider an out of session application if the applicants were in a position to provide the information requested prior to the next grant round closing.

Council officers will provide feedback to applicants in writing and where necessary will contact them directly to discuss their proposals.

## Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

This matter is consistent with the Council Plan 2017-2021 strategic objective Our People – 'together we will celebrate and encourage diverse, caring and connected communities'.

## **Relevant Legislation**

Implementation of the program is in accordance with Council's policy for the Community Grants Program.

### Financial Implications and Risk

The Community Grants budget for the 2017/18 financial year is \$30,000 and this is the second grant round for the year. There has been expenditure of \$12,160 to date. A total of \$9,500 has been recommended for approval in this round. The remaining budget allocated to Community Grants for the remaining grant round will be \$8,340.

#### **Conflict of Interest**

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in relation to this report.

### **Community and Stakeholder Consultation**

The Community Grant applications are assessed by the Community Grants Assessment Panel.

### **RESOLUTION:**

## Cr E Lording / Cr M Rae

That Council endorses the recommendations of the Community Grants Assessment Panel outlined in the following table:

Application	Funding sought	Recommendation
Yea Bowling Club	\$1,500	That the application be supported with a grant of \$1,000.
Firefoxes Australia	\$5,000	That the application be supported with a grant of \$2,500 in addition to waiving the fees for hire of the Yea Shire Hall and Community buses.
Sacred Heart Yea	\$4,200	That the application be supported with a grant of \$2,500.
Yea Pottery Studio Inc.	\$3,500	Supported
Alexandra Primary School Arts Committee (APSAC)	\$4,800	Application held awaiting further information.

CARRIED

Cr L Dunscombe returned to the Chamber at 6.39pm.

## 9. OUR PROSPERITY

## 10 OUR PROMISE

# 10.1 PROPOSED ROAD DISCONTINUANCE OF PART OF SMITH STREET, YEA – GOULBURN VALLEY WATER, YEA WATER TREATMENT PLANT

Attachment(s): Location Map (refer Attachment 10.1)

#### **Purpose**

This report proposes that Council discontinues part of Smith Street, Yea (Road). The statutory process for the proposed road discontinuance of that part of Smith Street is shown on the title plan below and has been initiated under Council officer delegation.

Goulburn Valley Water (GVW) initiated a planning enquiry for additional works to be undertaken at their Yea Water Treatment Plant, which prompted clarification of their tenure over existing and proposed infrastructure on Smith Street, Yea.

It was established that GVW's occupation of the Road is without formal consent.

If the Road is discontinued, the land will remain in the ownership of the Crown and the Department of Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) can then undertake the reservation of the land and the appointment of GVW as manager of the land to facilitate GVW's existing and proposed future use of the Road.

The Road had already been removed from Council's register of public roads in accordance with section 14(4) of the *Road Management Act 2004* following public notice of this previous proposal and the consideration of any submissions received in respect of that prior proposal.

#### Officer Recommendation:

That Council discontinues that part of Smith Street in Yea as shown on the title plan in this report and publishes a notice of discontinuance of this road in the Victorian Government Gazette and advises the Department of Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) accordingly.

# **Background**

GVW's Yea Water Treatment Plant occupies land privately owned by GVW each side of Smith Street, Yea along with their occupation (with infrastructure) of the Road, which is a government road, known as Smith Street, Yea (refer *Attachment 10.1*).

GVW's occupation of the government road is without consent and only recent enquiries as to their tenure rights has revealed this.

GVW is initiating a project to construct a ring road and a bund and relocate dosing tanks on the site. Before this work can proceed, Council needs to consider a proposal to discontinue the Road which, if discontinued, would remain in Crown ownership and enable DELWP to confer the necessary rights upon GVW to implement its proposal.

#### Discussion

Council, acting under Council officer delegation, has determined under section 17(4) of the *Act* that the Road be removed from Council's register of public roads, following public notice of the proposal. No submissions were received in response to the public notice.

Council has now initiated a road discontinuance process and has given public notice of the proposed road discontinuance in accordance with section 206 and clause 3 of Schedule 10 and Section 223 of the *Local Government Act 1989*. Again no submissions were received in response to the public notice process.

If Council resolves that the Road be discontinued, then public notice of the discontinuance of the Road will be published in the Victorian Government Gazette and DELWP advised accordingly.

There is prima facie case for Council to discontinue the Road on the basis of the existing occupancy of the Road by GVW infrastructure, the fencing off of the same and the absence of any requirement for public road access.

The works proposed by GVW will require planning approval for vegetation removal and any construction works on the road reserve.

## **Council Plan/Strategies/Policies**

This report is consistent with the Council Plan 2017-2021 Our Promise strategic objective 'working in collaboration with our communities to deliver the best possible outcomes in all that we do'.

## **Relevant Legislation**

Council cannot decide to discontinue the Road unless it first complies with section 17(4) of the *Act* and decides whether or not to remove the Road from Council's register of public roads. This statutory procedure has already been complied with and a decision made to remove the Road from Council's register of public road under Council officer delegation.

The statutory process for a proposed road discontinuance is in accordance with clause 3 of Schedule 10 and section 223 of the *Local Government Act 1989*.

## **Financial Implications and Risk**

All costs associated with the process including legal, survey, advertising, etc. will be borne by GVW.

#### **Conflict of Interest**

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in relation to this report.

## **Community and Stakeholder Consultation**

Consultation has occurred with GVW and DELWP.

By following the statutory notification process, the community has had an opportunity to comment on the discontinuance of the road.

#### **RESOLUTION:**

## Cr E Lording / Cr L Dunscombe

That Council discontinues that part of Smith Street in Yea as shown on the title plan in this report and publishes a notice of discontinuance of this road in the Victorian Government Gazette and advises the Department of Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) accordingly.

CARRIED

#### 10.2 COUNCIL OFFICER AUTHORISATIONS REVIEW

Attachment(s): S11A. Instrument of Appointment & Authorisation (Planning and

Environment Act 1987) (refer Attachment 10.2)

#### **Purpose**

The purpose of this report is to seek Council's adoption of the revised Appointment and Authorisations of staff under the *Planning and Environment Act 1987*.

#### Officer Recommendation

In the exercise of the powers conferred by the legislation referred to in the attached Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation (the instrument) (*Attachment 10.2* (S11A)), Murrindindi Shire Council (Council) resolves that:

- 1. the members of Council staff referred to in the instrument be appointed and authorised as set out in the instrument (*Attachment 10.2* (S11A))
- 2. the instrument comes into force immediately the common seal of Council is affixed to the instrument, and remains in force until Council determines to vary or revoke it
- the instrument be sealed
- 4. on the coming into force of the instrument all previous Appointments and Authorisations to staff are revoked.

## **Background**

Council is a legal entity comprised of its members (the seven Councillors). Its decision making power exists only as a group through resolution not as singular Councillors. Most decisions are not required to be made at a Council level therefore the Council must entrust some of the decision making power to others, this is done through delegations and authorisations.

Delegated powers fall under two areas:

- those delegated by Council to another party (including staff)
- those delegated by the Chief Executive Officer to staff.

Council subscribes to a delegations and authorisations service that provides Council with twice yearly legislation updates which facilitates an efficient review process of all delegations in place. Council's current delegations were last reviewed at the 28 June 2017 Council Meeting.

Since the last review of these delegations and authorisation, there have been some minor organisational structural changes in the planning area that are now required to be updated to ensure that Council officers can appropriately discharge their duties.

#### Discussion

Instruments of Appointment and Authorisations allow Council to authorise or appoint a person to a particular statutory position. Under the *Planning and Environment Act 1987* an employee of Council can only be authorised by Council, this is done through the following:

 The S11A. Instrument of Appointment & Authorisation (Planning and Environment Act 1987)

Council officers regularly review the delegations and authorisations and make recommendations to Council for resolution. These reviews take into account legislative changes and internal changes in staffing structures.

Generally, it is recommended that more than one Council officer is delegated or authorised to undertake a power. This assists operationally in that more than one Council officer is responsible for the work load as a consequence of having that power or if there is a short term absence, this does not hinder the ability of decisions to be made on behalf of Council.

However, some powers have a requirement for the person delegated to have specific qualifications to undertake the delegated power.

#### Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

This report is consistent with the strategic objective in the Council Plan 2017-2021 to work in collaboration with our communities to deliver the best possible outcomes in all that we do.

# **Relevant Legislation**

Council is required to approve Delegations, Authorisations and Appointments in accordance with section 98 of the *Local Government Act*. The Delegations, Authorisations and Appointments assign powers to Council officers under numerous pieces of legislation.

## **Financial Implications and Risk**

Effective and efficient functioning of local government would not be possible without formal delegations to officers.

#### **Conflict of Interest**

There are no declared conflicts of interest by Council officers in relation to this report.

## **Community and Stakeholder Consultation**

No external consultation is required in the preparation of Delegations and Authorisations.

#### **RESOLUTION:**

#### Cr M Rae / Cr J Ashe

In the exercise of the powers conferred by the legislation referred to in the attached Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation (the instrument) (*Attachment 10.2* (S11A)), Murrindindi Shire Council (Council) resolves that:

- 1. the members of Council staff referred to in the instrument be appointed and authorised as set out in the instrument (*Attachment 10.2* (S11A))
- 2. the instrument comes into force immediately the common seal of Council is affixed to the instrument, and remains in force until Council determines to vary or revoke it
- 3. the instrument be sealed
- 4. on the coming into force of the instrument all previous Appointments and Authorisations to staff are revoked.

CARRIED

#### 10.3 AUDIT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES

Attachment(s): 2018-03-08 Audit Advisory Committee Minutes (refer Attachment 10.3)

The minutes of the Audit Advisory Committee Meeting held on 8 March 2018 are attached (*Attachment 10.3*) for receiving.

#### Officer Recommendation

That Council note and receive the minutes of the Audit Advisory Committee meeting held on 8 March 2018 (*Attachment 10.3*).

## **RESOLUTION:**

Cr L Dunscombe / Cr S McAulay

That Council note and receive the minutes of the Audit Advisory Committee meeting held on 8 March 2018 (Attachment 10.3).

CARRIED

## 11. NOTICES OF MOTIONS

# 12. MATTERS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETING

Nil

## 13. URGENT BUSINESS

Nil

# 14. COUNCILLOR AND PORTFOLIO REPORTS

#### 14.1 CR MARGARET RAE - LAND USE PLANNING PORTFOLIO

This month I attended the Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV) Planning Committee where the main issues under consideration were:

Bushfire update – the primary aim of the recent bushfire amendments to the VPP (GC13, VC132 and VC140) on which I have reported previously is bushfire mapping, improving the operation of the bushfire planning provisions and enhancing the state bushfire planning policy to reflect the commitments of the State Emergency Management Capability Blueprint 2015-2025. There is a three step process to improving planning responses to bushfire – mapping, controls and strategy – developed to respond to the Victorian Bushfires Royal Commission recommendations.

In acknowledgement of the fact that there are at times inconsistencies in mapping data, Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) has introduced a six monthly review process that will enable specific property reviews if supported by Council.

DELWP and councils continue to work closely together to implement the new State policy (cf SPPF Clause 13.05) which has five key strategies:

- Protection of human life
- Bushfire hazard identification and assessment
- Settlement planning
- Areas of high biodiversity conservation value
- Use and development control in bushfire prone areas

There will continue to be much change and work to be undertaken in this space and our planning unit puts a great deal of effort in keeping abreast of the changes and new requirements.

- The new <u>Ministerial Direction No. 18 Victorian Planning Authority Advice on Planning Scheme Amendments</u> was issued on 28 January 2018 in order to clarify and regularise the VPA's involvement in planning activity and advice. Councils now need to be cognisant of advice given by VPA in preparation of documentation.
- The MAV/VPA partnership agreement a possible review is under consideration.
- SMART Planning update further work underway includes:
  - A formal review of definitions is being undertaken by an Advisory Committee with a discussion paper currently out for comment. Responses are due by 3 April 2018
  - A number of pilot projects currently under way that may lead to more widespread changes

- Integration of VicSmart into zones and overlays
- VPP manual, policy rules and monitoring are also being developed.
- Work is continuing by the Animal Industries Advisory Committee with the current focus being on land use definitions – these are not included in the formal review of definitions but are being considered separately in the context of a graduated framework based on risk. A code of practice and technical guidelines are also being developed.

Within Council I am pleased to advise that 27 planning permits were issued in February reflecting the diversity of development in our Council. As well as residential dwellings, permits were issued for guest cabins in Narbethong, a retail development in Strath Creek, a medical centre in Kinglake, a telecommunication facility in Narbethong and a new police station in Alexandra.

A standard practice of holding a meeting between planning applicants and outstanding objectors has also been reintroduced so that open and clear communication can take place and resolution of issues can be achieved wherever possible. This is already demonstrating positive outcomes.

In addition to portfolio matters I have attended a number of activities representing Council, including:

- Municipal Association of Victoria Planning Committee main items reported above;
- Yea Saleyards Stage 2 Official Opening it is rewarding to see the long term planning by such a dedicated committee coming into fruition;
- Alexandra District Health Clinical Services Review Community Consultation the meeting held in Alexandra was one of a series and was extremely well attended, again demonstrating the value our community places on our local health services;
- Alexandra Historical Society Photograph Exhibition this is the second time for this
  exhibition and it draws great community interest and engagement, and is also a real
  attraction for visitors to Alexandra;
- Alexandra Racecourse and Recreation Reserve Committee AGM this was to elect the committee and office bearers for the next three years according to normal DELWP requirements;
- Taggerty Hall AGM this was also held to elect the committee and office bearers for the next three years and it was a pleasure to be invited to chair this meeting with such a passionate and committed community.
- VicRoads Community Consultation regarding the Grant Street/Downey Street
  intersection this was a worthwhile exercise that engaged the community in gaining a
  wider understanding of the issues and challenges in respect of this intersection, to hear
  about the proposed treatment and to put forward their preferences and ideas for
  consideration.

## 14.2 CR JACKIE ASHE - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO

**Business and Tourism Innovation Grants** 

- Applications for the first round of grants are now closed
- A fantastic response with applications received across all categories
- The applications are being assessed by an independent panel that will make recommendations to council for decision soon
- Watch this space

#### **Telecommunications**

 Killingworth Mobile Phone Black Spot funded tower to be launched at Y Water Discovery Centre on 24 April 2018

## Murrindindi Business Monthly (MBM) – EDM (Business newsletter)

 Currently 219 subscribers – Just a reminder - businesses can sign up via Council's website ("your business" tab)

#### **Promotions**

- Eat Play Stay
- A range of locations are being featured across the Council including Kinglake, Yea, Alexandra, Eildon and Marysville
- There is a focus on Kinglake National Park, Lake Eildon, Great Victorian Rail Trail/Cheviot tunnel, local food & wine, and Yea Wetlands
- Broadcast is scheduled for April May and July August 2018
- All intros/outros and throws to the break for Season 16 are filmed in the Murrindindi Shire Council
- Each episode will receive two weeks of national television exposure. 12 weeks in total http://www.eatplayandstay.com.au/

#### **Events**

- New events Kinglake Country Fair and Music in the Park in Alexandra both went well and thanks to the organisers of each of these events
- Event organisers are encouraged to list their tourism events for free in the April to October Calendar of events. Contact Council if you are interested

#### Out & About

- Met with Shadow Minister for Tourism & Events Heidi Victoria and member councils of GRVT
- We all met with MP Cathy McGowan at Council last week
- Murrindindi Inc meeting
- Looking forward to catching up with Marysville Tourism and Business next week.

# 14.3 CR ERIC LORDING - INFRASTRUCTURE AND WASTE PORTFOLIO

Infrastructure - it is the busy part of the year

- Truck Park at Yea Saleyard is well underway and will be completed in April for use during the winter
- Marysville and Triangle Arts and Culture building refurbishment is going well on program and about 30% complete
- Bushfire Memorials construction commenced with works underway at Marysville, Kinglake West and Narbethong with the other sites to follow soon.
- Our re-sheeting and re-sealing program is almost complete
- Grant Street Alexandra shopping precinct was resealed last Sunday with a minimum of disruption
- Work has commenced on the upgrade of the Thornton football pavilion clubrooms

- Our path program is on schedule with works in Narbethong and Buxton recently completed
- Programmed road maintenance activities are progressing in Kinglake and Limestone

#### Waste

Council, in collaboration with both Mitchell and Strathbogie Councils, has requested further information from Visy Recycling in relation to the processing of co-mingled recycling. The three councils were part of a joint procurement process which resulted in Visy Recycling being appointed to accept and process co-mingled recyclables from each council's kerbside recycling collection. In light of the current issues in the recycling sector we are working together to ensure the best outcome for ratepayers. Interstate shipping of waste is no longer a possibility with Queensland applying a waste levy making this option uneconomic.

#### Wasp Update

- Wasp activity has been very minimal this season the December rain event was a contributor to this
- Wasps are nesting in unusual places this season. Nest are being found in wall cavities and under eaves
- Staff have done walk throughs of the Yea Wetlands area and no nests were located
- We have recorded 23 nests treated by Council staff and local volunteers.
- Let Council know if you find a nest on Council land or if you need advice or assistance in treating a nest

Flowerdale Community Hall has appointed a new coordinator and receptionist.

The Flowerdale Forum was a great success with many dignitaries and over 60 locals attending, some from outlying areas too. The Forum highlighted areas of concern for residents with Council Officers taking away a well-documented list of needs in the Southern parts of the Council.

Attending the North East Agricultural Industry Dinner in Wangaratta was entertaining. Minister Pulford attended and received a number of interesting questions on VicForests. The plight of the dairy industry was discussed at length. The future plans for digitisation of farm management proved a very interesting presentation. All in all, it was well worthwhile attending.

I have been asked to invite the CEO of Robert Bosch to the next function to discuss their offerings in the 'internet of things'.

# 14.4 CR LEIGH DUNSCOMBE - CORPORATE AND CUSTOMER SERVICES PORTFOLIO

No report this month.

# 14.5 CR REBECCA BOWLES - NATURAL ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE PORTFOLIO

Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV) Environment, in the recycling debacle the MAV have come to the same conclusion as the Goulburn Broken Waste and Recovery council did as Councillor Lording outlined last month.

MAV procurement advocacy letter to use recycled products such as bins, seats, chairs etc. in councils purchasing agreements.

Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) Officer Kate Gavins discussed the overhaul that is occurring within the Environment Protection Authority (EPA) in that they will be pro-active instead of re-active, and that the embedded EPA officer within some councils would not be paid for by said councils but paid out of the landfill levy, which all said and done comes from Local Government.

DELWP Biodiversity grants are now open, as I have discovered recently these grants are very top heavy as to be entitled to grants for local bio-diversity projects you have to get ALL adjoining landholders on board, which includes Vic Roads, DELWP, VicForests, Parks, Council etc. That is a very tall order and one that most Landcare and/or other interested bodies would find very difficult to achieve.

Yarra Valley is steaming ahead with their renewable agenda and are now scouring the council for carpark roofs to install new solar.

Banyule and Whitehorse have created a Significant Tree Register, 5m circumference for Whitehorse 12 for Banyule. Residents need to agree to add their three to registry. Stonington has put a bond of \$10 to \$25 thousand on significant trees in development sites to deter developers from "accidently knocking down significant trees. Interesting to see whether this works in reality.

Unfortunately, there has been a major setback for the community garden project around the Police Station as there has been an external security review completed with the recommendation that the community compost project has to go, this now puts in jeopardy all the great collaboration that has been achieved so far between the community house, the high school and the local police station. However, on that note the Alexandra VCAL students have begun their compost collection for the Alexandra community gardens.

Over the past month local Landcare groups have been involved in clean up Australia day:

- Yea Wetlands: 4 chaff bags 4 people
- Homewood: 20 chaff bags 17 people
- Strath Creek: 20 wheelie bins full
- Yea Fishing club: on crown land over the Goulburn River, six chaff bags, 2 ute loads of camping gear

A common theme running thru the collection is that most of the item collected are take away food items thrown out of car windows.

Murrindindi Shire Council provided wheelie bins and tip passes.

Platypus/Rikali count: six water rats no platypi.

Hot of the press 'The community energy network' was formed Monday of this week, a group of community energy groups and stakeholders to support the launch of a community energy retailer. More information at <a href="https://www.cathymcgowan.com.au/towardsa">www.cathymcgowan.com.au/towardsa</a>totallyrenewableindi.

#### 14.6 CR SANDICE MCAULAY - COMMUNITY SERVICES PORTFOLIO

I was delighted to be invited to the Community Transport Forum held in Yea earlier this month as convened by our own very energetic Sally MacDonald. The forum was basically a small representative group of older community members together with a panel of community transport service providers aiming to:

map what's available

- discuss how is it being utilised
- canvass how we can enhance and better connect existing services
- finally inform priority advocacy items

I was also present for the Yea Sale Yards opening which was such a great opportunity to celebrate the ongoing development of such a wonderful asset that is managed by such an enthusiastic and committed group of volunteers.

People would have seen or heard about the Community Planning advertisements for expressions of interest which is underway. Expression of Interest forms have already been received which is great. There seems to be a buzz about this and people are asking questions already. Reached about 4000 people on Facebook. Flyers have been circulated tonight.

## Marysville Tourism and Arts Centre update

The inner refurbishment – reframing – is ticking along well but obviously can't be seen – however the new entrance to the building is beginning to be clearly defined at the front of the building. The renaming competition has been actively participated in – have heard quite a few options on the grapevine – but nothing definite as yet! It is anticipated that the centre will reopen in about September.

I'm excited to announce that a sod turning event is being planned for the redevelopment of the Yea Children's Centre redevelopment possibly the 16<sup>th</sup> April. This will provide an opportunity to acknowledge the State Government's funding of \$325,000 through the Children's Facilities Capital Program. This will improve access to the long day care area of the centre. look forward to updating Councillors as this project unfolds.

I was honoured to be invited to the Marysville and Triangle Foundation Community discussion about the ten-year memorial of the 2009 fires that was held at Buxton last week. A quick summary of the feedback to the Foundation to date is that one third of the respondents really just want to be left alone. This is understandable and that is respectfully acknowledged. The remainder see the anniversary as a time of firstly respecting and remembering the significance of the 10-year anniversary.

It is also a time to say thank you to the many people and organisations that provided support during that time as well as celebrating the importance and resilience of community. This conversation will continue to be led by the Marysville and Triangle Foundation in the months to come

There was general consensus that there may be quiet local BBQ's in each community on the evening of the anniversary. There was general need for the sense of being together.

Mobile Library and Customer Service Centre Should be on the road in May – we will be in touch with the community regarding the launch date.

## 14.7 CR CHARLOTTE BISSET – MAYORAL REPORT

Thank you for the opportunity to present my report. This past month has been an exciting one.

I attended the first of the 2018 series of the Hume Region Local Government Network, which sees CEO's and Mayors from councils within the Hume Region gather. We met in Benalla and the hot topic was the waste situation and more importantly an update form Nick Nagel from the Goulburn Valley Waste Management Authority on the current recycling situation and its effects within our region.

It was with great pleasure that I attended the Alexandra Primary School assembly, to present the badges at the Investiture Ceremony for the 2018 student leaders. I was very impressed by the maturity of the leaders and their attitudes to the role. They ran the assembly and I am absolutely confident there are some fantastic capable community leaders emerging.

On 3 March 2018 I was invited by the Redgate Country Women's Association (CWA) branch to be the guest speaker at the CWA Hume Goulburn group conference and AGM, which was held in Alexandra. I would like to wish CWA Victoria a very happy 90 years of service in 2018. The Redgate CWA branch based in Alexandra is I am aware celebrating 57 years of service this year. I would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge and thank all the CWA branches for their service and contribution to our communities, especially the local branches located in the Murrindindi Shire Council – we have the Redgate CWA, Yarck CWA, Yea CWA and Flowerdale CWA. I also like to think that CWA means Chicks with Attitude!

On 5 March 2018, along with Craig Lloyd, I attended the stakeholder's consultation forum for the Alexandra and District Health and Yea and District Memorial Hospital clinical services plan 2018-2022. This was followed up with a private introductory meeting with the Alexandra District Health CEO.

Also on 5 March 2018, I attended the Yarck Hall Committee AGM and would like to publically acknowledge some particular residents for their outstanding and noteworthy contributions to the community. Ms Norma Hodgeson who after 46 years on the Yarck Hall committee is stepping down and Mr John Drysdale who after 33 years on the committee is also stepping down. This great community facility is once again hosting the Artz@Yarck program with three wonderful events in the coming months- Keep your eye out for brochures.

Working in collaboration, building and maintaining relationships with and supporting fellow councils and keeping open conversations going is vital in the area of Local Government, especially with small rural councils. In March the Mayors and CEO's of Strathbogie, Mansfield and Murrindindi got together for the main purpose to introduce Craig, but more so for looking at ways to support each other as we are often facing similar challenges. This first meeting was positive.

It was an absolute pleasure to open the second stage of the Yea sale yards on Friday 9 March 2018. Being on the Sale Yards Committee, I know all too well the dedication and hard work the Committee has put into not only this project but the continual growth of the yards over its 24-year history. To formally have it opened and functional is a testament to the Committee, Council and the support from the farming sector.

Along with Cr Lording, Cathy McGowan MP federal member for Indi and Sate member Cindy McLeish and CEO Craig Lloyd, I attended a community forum at Flowerdale. This was a terrific opportunity for the all three levels of government to talk with the community about their concerns. Respectful and honest conversations were had and people came away from evening feeling listened to and understood. I would like to thank the Flowerdale community.

Lastly, on Saturday evening the Marysville Community Centre was transformed into a winter wonderland as it hosted the Alexandra Secondary College 2018 Debutant Ball. Deputy Mayor Cr McAulay and myself accepted the invitation and attended the event and thoroughly enjoyed watching the year 11 ladies and gents set the scene for a lovely evening. Their conscientious efforts into the preparation for the event, was evident as they waltzed their way around the dance floor with ease. Parents, teachers and the community should proud of these young adults.

## 15. ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCILLORS

# **Purpose**

This report presents the records of assemblies of Councillors for 22 February 2018 to 21 March 2018, for Council to note in accordance with Section 80A of the *Local Government Act 1989* (the *Act*).

#### Officer Recommendation

That Council receives and notes the record of assemblies of Councillors for 22 February 2018 to 21 March 2018.

### **Background**

In accordance with Section 80A of the *Act*, written assemblies of Councillors are to be reported at an Ordinary Meeting of Council.

An assembly of Councillors includes advisory committees, where one or more Councillors were present, along with planned or scheduled meetings involving at least half of the Councillors and a Council officer.

A Councillor who has a conflict of interest at assemblies of Councillors, must disclose the conflict of interest, and leave the meeting while the matter is being discussed.

#### Discussion

A written record is required to be kept of every assembly of Councillors, including the names of all Councillors and staff at the meeting, a list of the matters considered, any conflict of interest disclosed by a Councillor, and whether a Councillor who disclosed a conflict left the meeting.

The following summary details are for 22 February 2018 to 21 March 2018:

Meeting Date:	22 February 2018
Meeting Name/Type	Municipal Emergency Management Planning Committee (MEMPC) Meeting
Matters Discussed:	Lake Mountain Úpdate – requirement for separate     MEMPC
	2. Fire Prevention Program – update on season
	3. Fire Advisory Committee – business arising
	4. Agency review of December 1 Flood Event
	<ol><li>Crisis Works Reminder – how to access EM</li></ol>
	documents
	6. Eildon Safer Together Pilot update
Councillor Attendees:	Cr S McAulay
Council Officer Attendees:	J Canny, C Price
Conflict of Interest Disclosu	res: Nil

Meeting Date:	28 February 2018
Meeting Name/Type	Councillor Briefing (Council Meeting Pre-Brief)
Matters Discussed:	Review of Murrindindi Environment Advisory     Committee
	Extension of Leases at the Kinglake Rebuilding and Advisory Centre
	3. Regional Tourism Partnerships
	4. Quarterly Council Plan 2017-2021 Progress Summary - 31 December 2017
	5. Quarterly Financial Report to 31 December 2017
	6. December Quarterly Report – Capital Works
	Program 2017/18
	7. Tender 17/33 – Planning Services Panel

Councillor Attendees:			Parking Area Tender 17/4 – ( Eildon Jamieso Bisset, Cr S M	Yea Regional Sal Civil Works Pane In Road – Safety IcAulay, Cr L Dun	Improvements scombe, Cr R
O I Office on Allege de con			Bowles, Cr J Ashe, Cr M Rae, Cr E Lording C Lloyd, M Chesworth, S McConnell, A Bond, J Canny,		
			own, M Leitinge	•	, A Bond, J Canny,
Conflict of Ir	terest Disclosui	es: Y	es		
Matter No.	Councillor mak disclosure	king	Was a vote taken?	Did the Councillor leave the room?	When? Before or after discussion
3	Cr J Ashe		No	Yes	Before

Meeting Date:	7 March 2018		
Meeting Name/Type	Councillor Briefing		
Matters Discussed:	1. Finance Overview		
	2. Renewal Gap		
	3. Capital Reserves		
	4. Capital Evaluation Criteria & Program Overview		
	(Councillor Priorities)		
	5. Budget Workshop		
	6. Update on Waste Services Provision		
	7. Local Government Act Bill Review		
	Organisational Priorities and Staffing Update		
Councillor Attendees:	Cr Bisset, Cr McAulay, Cr Dunscombe, Cr Lording, Cr		
	Rae, Cr Bowles, Cr Ashe		
Council Officer Attendees:	C Lloyd, S McConnell, M Chesworth, A Bond, J Canny,		
	A Kyval, T Carter		
Conflict of Interest Disclosures: Nil			

Meeting Date:	14 March 2018		
Meeting Name/Type	Councillor Briefing		
Matters Discussed:	Aged and Disability Services Reforms and Council Review		
	Six Dwellings and 6 Lot Subdivision Planning     Application		
	Proposed Dwelling Planning Application		
	4. Staff Satisfaction Survey		
Councillor Attendees:	Cr C Bisset, Cr S McAulay, Cr L Dunscombe, Cr R		
	Bowles, Cr M Rae, Cr E Lording, Cr J Ashe		
Council Officer Attendees:	C Lloyd, M Chesworth, N McNamara, A Kyval, S		
	Brown, D Fotheringham, K Girvan, S McConnell		
Conflict of Interest Disclosures: Nil			

Meeting Date:	21 March 2018
Meeting Name/Type	Councillor Briefing
Matters Discussed:	Cathy McGowan - Meeting with Councillors
	2. Waste 2050 Strategy
	3. Depot Operations
	4. Increases in the Cost of Recyclables Processing

	5. Proposed Road Discontinuance of Part of Smith	
	Street, Yea – Goulburn Valley Water, Yea Water	
	Treatment Plant	
Councillor Attendees:	Cr C Bisset, Cr S McAulay, Cr L Dunscombe, Cr R	
	Bowles, Cr J Ashe, Cr M Rae, Cr E Lording	
Council Officer Attendees:	C Lloyd, M Chesworth, S McConnell, A Kyval, M	
	Leitinger, J Russell	
Conflict of Interest Disclosures: Nil		

## Council Plan/Strategies/Policies

This matter is consistent with the Council Plan 2017-2017 Our Promise strategy to "Expand our communication".

## **Relevant Legislation**

For full details of Council's requirement for assemblies of Councillors, refer to Section 80A of the *Local Government Act 1989*.

# **Financial Implications and Risk**

There are no financial or risk implications.

#### **Conflict of Interest**

Any conflicts of interest are noted in the assemblies of Councillors tables listed above.

## **RESOLUTION:**

# Cr J Ashe / Cr E Lording

That Council receives and notes the record of assemblies of Councillors for 22 February 2018 to 21 March 2018.

**CARRIED** 

# 16. SEALING REGISTER

File Reference	Date Seal Affixed	Description of Documents	Signatures of Persons Sealing
SF/895	14 March 2018	Lease between Murrindindi Shire Council and Toolangi District Community House Inc. Section 17D Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978 Lease (Non Retail) Toolangi Castella Community House	Craig Lloyd Cr Charlotte Bisset
SF/2751	19 March 2018	Management Agreement and Sub-licence between Murrindindi Shire Council and Alexandra Traders Pty Ltd Trading as Vita Nova Fitness - Facility Alexandra Community Leisure Centre.	Craig Lloyd Cr Charlotte Bisset
CONT 17/4	23 March 2018	Formal Instrument of Agreement between Murrindindi Shire Council and North Central Construction for Civil Works Panel Contract	Cr Margaret Rae Craig Lloyd
CONT 17/4	23 March 2018	Formal Instrument of Agreement between Murrindindi Shire Council and Parkworks Environmental Group for Civil Works Panel Contract	Cr Margaret Rae Craig Lloyd

### Officer Recommendation

That the list of items to which the Council seal has been affixed be noted.

#### **RESOLUTION:**

Cr S McAulay / Cr M Rae

That the list of items to which the Council seal has been affixed be noted.

**CARRIED** 

## 17. CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

The Local Government Act 1989 section 89(2) allows Council to resolve to close a meeting to the public to consider confidential information relating to any of the following matters:

- (a) personnel matters
- (b) the personal hardship of any resident or ratepayer
- (c) industrial matters
- (d) contractual matters
- (e) proposed developments
- (f) legal advice
- (g) matters affecting the security of Council property
- (h) any other matter which the Council or special committee considers would prejudice the Council or any person
- (i) a resolution to close the meeting to members of the public.

Where possible Council will resolve to make public any decision it makes in a closed meeting where the resolution does not disclose confidential information. There may be occasions where Council cannot make its decision public.

The report on the Tree and Weed Services Panel is being considered in the closed part of this meeting because it is considered under S89(2)(d) contractual matters.

#### Recommendation

That Council, in accordance with the *Local Government Act 1989* section 89(2)(d), resolve to close the meeting to the members of the public to consider the following item:

Tree and Weed Services Panel

#### **RESOLUTION:**

Cr Dunscombe / Cr Rae

That the meeting be closed to the public pursuant to s.89(2)(d) of the *Local Government Act 1989* due to contractual matters.

CARRIED

The meeting closed to the public at 7.07pm

The meeting re-opened to the public at 7.11 pm.

During the closed section of the meeting Council resolved to bring the following resolution into the public section of the meeting.

#### 17.3 Tree and Weed Services Panel

#### **RESOLUTION:**

Cr L Dunscombe / Cr E Lording

**That Council:** 

- 1. agrees not to establish a panel for large scale natural disaster emergency tree services (Trees Category A) because none of the respondents demonstrated that they could meet Council's minimum requirements
- 2. agrees not to establish a panel for mechanical removal and/or mulching (Weeds Category F) because this requirement can better be met through Council's newly established Civil Works Panel or the revamped Plant Hire Panel which is being established
- 3. agrees to establish a panel for tree services with the following suppliers for each of the panel categories:
  - a. standard emergency response and clean up (Trees Category B):
    - Keath's Excavations Pty Ltd
    - Woods Environmental Services
    - Albri Pty Ltd
    - Aspect Tree Management Pty Ltd.
  - b. general tree works (Trees Category C):
    - Woods Environmental Services
    - Albri Pty Ltd
    - Aspect Tree Management Pty Ltd
    - Morgan's Tree Services Pty Ltd.
  - c. tree root maintenance (Trees Category D)
    - Woods Environmental Services
    - Northern Tree Solutions Pty Ltd.
  - d. tree planting, maintenance and establishment (Tress Category E)
    - Woods Environmental Services
    - Central Land Management Services Pty Ltd (CLMS).
  - e. pest and disease management (Trees Category F)
    - Woods Environmental Services
    - Northern Tree Solutions Pty Ltd
    - Elm Spray Pty Ltd.
- 4. agrees to establish a panel for weed services with the following suppliers for each of the panel categories:
  - a. spot spraying (Weeds Category A):
    - HLM Aust Pty Ltd
    - GLT Weed Management (GLT)
    - Indigenous Design Environmental Management
    - Warrawee Holdings Pty Ltd

- Hillside Fencing & Weed Spraying (Hillside FWS).
- b. boom spraying (Weeds Category B):
  - HLM Aust Pty Ltd
  - GLT Weed Management (GLT).
- c. cut and paint (Weeds Category C):
  - HLM Aust Pty Ltd
  - Indigenous Design Environmental Management.
- d. drill and fill (Weeds Category D):
  - HLM Aust Pty Ltd
  - Indigenous Design Environmental Management.
- e. hand weeding (Weeds Category E):
  - HLM Aust Pty Ltd
  - Indigenous Design Environmental Management.
- f. weed mapping (Weeds Category G):
  - Indigenous Design Environmental Management
  - GLT Weed Management (GLT).
- 5. authorise the signing and sealing of Contract 17/31 with each of the above suppliers for a three-year period, with two optional one-year extension periods.

CARRIED

There being no further items of Business, the Chairperson declared the meeting closed at 7.11pm.

CONFIRMED THIS	Tuesday 24 April 2018	
CHAIRPERSON	MSSex	
	- / 0	